## MINUTES OF THE JOINT CAPITAL OUTLAY SUBCOMMITTEE

Thursday, February 16, 2012

9:00 a.m.

Room 352, State Capitol

The Joint Capital Outlay Subcommittee was called to order by the Chair, Representative Eileen Kowall.

Members present: Representatives Kowall, Goike, Genetski, Potvin, Pscholka, Jackson, and McCann. Senators Booher, Schuitmaker, Jansen, Moolenaar, Green, and Hood.

Members absent/excused: Senator Anderson.

Senator Hood moved to excuse absent members. There being no objection, absent members were excused.

Representative Goike moved to approve the minutes of October 27, 2011.

There being no objection, the motion prevailed by unanimous consent.

The Chair laid **HCR 49**, the State Building Authority Lease for the Department of State Police, Bay City State Police Post before the subcommittee:

House Concurrent Resolution 49 would approve the conveyance of property and a standard lease between the state and the State Building Authority (SBA) relative to the Department of State Police, Bay City State Police Post.

Approval of this resolution is the final remaining legal requirement to enable the SBA to issue bonds to finance the state's share of the project's construction costs. The project has met all of the approval requirements of the Joint Capital Outlay Subcommittee and the Management and Budget Act, 1984 PA 431. Approval would create a contractual obligation between the state and the SBA, requiring the state to make annual rent payments to the SBA. The SBA will use the rent payments to pay off the bonds sold to finance the construction. Once the debt obligations are satisfied, the SBA will transfer title back to the state.

The project involves construction of a new post to replace the 77-year old facility. The new post is a one-story building with 12,250 sq. ft. and is designed to house 25 to 30 State Police officers and associated support staff. The building includes office space, conference rooms, holding cells, weapons and equipment storage areas, locker rooms, a wellness center, and a public lobby. Site improvements include entrance drives and a paved parking lot.

The project was initially approved for construction in Public Act 278 of 2008 with an estimated total project cost of \$2.9 million. The total project cost was increased by \$311,000 in Public Act 27 of 2010 and was increased by \$500,000 in Public Act 82 of 2011. This brought the total project cost to \$3.7 million.

The total cost of the project is \$3.7 million. Annual rent payments to the SBA are estimated at between \$254,000 and \$332,000 until the bonds are retired (approximately 15 to 17 years). The actual true market rent amount, within or below the respective range, will be determined when the project is completed and has been independently appraised. Annual rent payments to the SBA are appropriated in the General Government appropriations bill and total \$256.9 million for FY 2012.

Robin Risko from the House Fiscal Agency explained and answered questions regarding the concurrent resolution.

Inspector James G. Shaw, Michigan State Police, Field Services Bureau, answered questions regarding the concurrent resolution.

Deborah M. Roberts, Executive Director of the State Building Authority and Interim Director of DTMB Real Estate Division, answered questions regarding the concurrent resolution.

Senator Green moved to approve HCR 49.

Representative Goike seconded the motion.

The motion prevailed by a vote of 12-1-0.

## FAVORABLE ROLL CALL:

Yeas: Representatives Kowall, Goike, Genetski, Pscholka, Jackson, and McCann.

Senators Booher, Schuitmaker, Jansen, Moolenaar, Green, and Hood.

Nays: Representative Potvin.

Pass: None.

There being no further business before the subcommittee and seeing no objection, the Chair adjourned the meeting, the time being 9:36 a.m.

## Representative Eileen Kowall, Chairperson \_

Ben Williams Jr., Committee Clerk, (517) 373-1988 36 Minutes